

What's New in Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud

July 2016 Release (16.07)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ORACLE PLANNING AND BUDGETING CLOUD	4
SIMPLIFIED INTERFACE	4
Dashboards	4
Home Page Shortcuts	6
Hierarchical Views	
Right-Click Menus	6
Navigation Flows	
Support for Attribute Dimensions	6
Artifact Labels	7
Simplified Currency	
Smart List Dynamic Sync With Dimension Hierarchies	9
Sync Scenario Time Range with Form Display	9
Clear Cube	9
Data Maps From Any Dense Dimension	
Drill from Shared Members on a Form	
Limit User Variables By Member Functions	
Specify Ranges within Substitution Variables	
Hide Save Confirmation Messages on Form Save	
Duplicate Aliases	
Invalid Intersections Reports	
PLANNING STANDARD INTERFACE (WORKSPACE)	
Smart View for Office	
Import Metadata for Microsoft Word	
Insert Attributes in Ad Hoc Grids	
Attribute and Time Period Dimensions in Planning Admin Extension	
DATA MANAGEMENT	
Service Instance Integrations	
New All Data Types Data Load Method	
CALCULATION MANAGER	
Redesigned Metadata Loop Component Within a Template	
Create a Template Using A Script	
New and Revised System Templates	
Step Validation Errors and Warnings	
Create a New Variable Wherever the Variable Selector is Available	
Member Type Variable Includes Attribute Dimension Names(s)	
Condition Builder for Debugging	
Log Messages Available After Log Off	
Partial Clear of Database Properties	
New Design-Time Prompt Functions	
New Design-Time Prompt Types	
New Design-Time Prompt Grid	
New Custom Defined Functions	
APPLICATION MANAGEMENT	24
Application Access Control	
Migration Functionality Moved to Console Card	
WEB SERVICES	

New Oracle Cloud REST APIs for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud	26
METADATA UPDATE AND CUBE REFRESH CONSIDERATIONS	26
Disclaimer	26

ORACLE PLANNING AND BUDGETING CLOUD

This guide outlines what you need to know about new or improved functionality in Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud. Each section includes a brief description of the feature, the steps to take to either enable or begin using the feature, tips or considerations to keep in mind, and the resources available to help you.

SIMPLIFIED INTERFACE

Here is a summary of the key enhancements being introduced in the Simplified Interface.

DASHBOARDS

Dashboards are now much more powerful and easy to create.

Administrators design dashboards to provide an overview to key information that drives decisions. Then, using the dashboard, users can chart and even change key business data. For example, they can change a driver such as Volume in a form that's in a dashboard and immediately see its impact in other forms and charts:



In a dashboard you can include:

- Up to six forms
- Up to nine charts that dynamically depict data. Use chart types such as Area, Bar, Bubble, Column, Doughnut, Funnel, Gauge, Scatter, Radar, and so on.

- A new chart type called a *Tile* displays a specific value from the cube, for example, the June Sales target for a particular product.
- A new chart type called *Gauge* works much like a gas gauge: it shows whether a data value falls within an acceptable range or not. For example:
- A dynamic link to an external web site.
- Explanations of data called Commentary.

Dashboards and composite forms now support global POV bars, so that the local POVs that are common are combined in the global POV bar to avoid repeating them in each object. User variables are supported in both local and global POVs.

You have a great deal of flexibility in designing the dashboard. For example:

- You can choose to display objects vertically or horizontally.
- Each object can be a different size.
- You can set an object's size as Fixed or Flexible.
- The design can be asymmetric.

To create a dashboard:



- 1. Click or tap Databased on the Home page, and then **Create**.
- 2. Name it.
- 3. From the design palette on the left, drag and drop objects onto the dashboard canvas.

As you design the dashboard, you can switch between using the design pallet and runtime mode, so you can see exactly what the dashboard user will see. You can also assign access to dashboards for users and groups.

When planners use a dashboard (referred to as *runtime*), they can change and save data, run rules, and so on. When they save data, it's saved in all the objects in a dashboard. They can set many aspects of the object, such as the type of chart displayed, the dashboard's title, and so on. A hover toolbar in the upper right corner is available for each object type, providing such options as Actions, Save, Refresh, Settings, and Maximize.

For more inform on designing dashboards, see "Designing Dashboards" in Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud. For information on using dashboards, see the chapter "Analyzing Data Using Dashboards" in Working with Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud.

HOME PAGE SHORTCUTS

The home page displays system announcements, lists recent activity, and provides shortcuts to open tasks and user favorites. Now, users can add recently used items and save their frequently used actions as favorites.

HIERARCHICAL VIEWS

With this release, forms, task lists, and reports can be viewed in either list view or hierarchical view.

RIGHT-CLICK MENUS

Within forms and input grids, cell level action menus such as comments and document attachments can now be accessed using a right-click menu.

NAVIGATION FLOWS

You can now create customizable navigation flows for groups of users. Within each navigation flow, you can create functional flows that can contain vertical and horizontal tabs with group specific dashboards, forms, tasks, reports, and approvals.

To work with navigation flows, in Settings, click or tap

See "Designing Custom Navigation Flows" in Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud.

SUPPORT FOR ATTRIBUTE DIMENSIONS

You can now use an attribute dimension as a dimension, as a filter in forms and reports, and within ad hoc grids. Using attribute dimensions enables administrators and end users to perform tasks such as:

- Filtering data using attribute members, such as by products with a certain color
- Performing cross-dimensional rollups across attribute members
- Reporting and analysis with attribute dimension members using Smart View, or financial reports
- Using attribute dimensions in dynamic user variables

Attribute dimensions are optional and are listed separately on the Layout tab of the Form Designer. Drag the Attribute dimension to a Point of View or to a row or column to add it to the form grid.

orm and Ad Hoc Grid	Management	t.							
imple Form: ACT - Hyper	Effect Input								
popertes Layout (2ther Options	Bunness Byles	Smert Pu	an l					
Point of View						(q _{1_}	Grid Properties		
12 Stat_AmountHype	erEffect	9	+	BE BOURRYear	41.		Rows		
鼅, ACT		4		鼅 USD	¥3.		Suppress Hissing blocks Suppress Hissing data - Rows Suppress Invelid data - Rows	信息	
Page						141.	Default row height	Medure	i.
醫 PKG_01100,PKG_	1401		•	題 Draft1,Draft2,Pin,WhatUF_Gobal,WhatUF_Re	4		Columns Suppress missing data - Columna Suppress invalid data - Columna		
Attribute Dimension							Default column width	Medure	
程Entity_Currency				能Entity_Country			Other Suppress invalid Scenario/Time Periods	12	
MEntly_Regions				Bern. Jane			Gobal Assumptions Form		
證Entity_Function				態Gobal_Function			Enable Autosave	巴	
MEntty_Category				MEntity_Type					
龍Entity_Process									
				Columns			Digension Properties		
				^			Segment Properties		
	Rows			編 ILvi0Descendants(YearTotal), YearTotal	4		Display Properties		
Lease Date second							Smart View Option		
1 混 ILvi0Desc	endants(Munct)	onVar)	4				Printing Options		
							Validation Rules		

You can also use Attribute dimension members in Smart View where they can be used to filter data, to zoom, and to pivot.

See "Attribute Dimensions" in Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud.

ARTIFACT LABELS

Administrators can use artifact labels to customize artifact names and descriptions based on the user's browser locale. For example, if you create a form, you can have the form name displayed in the language of the user.

The Artifact Strings page displays an Excel-style spreadsheet grid that is filtered by artifact and property type. Click Add Language to display a new language-specific column in which you can enter text for each artifact property (Name, Description, and so on). You can also export the artifact strings to edit them, and then import them.

To work with artifact labels, in Settings, click or tap

See "Customizing Artifact Strings by Language" in Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud.

SIMPLIFIED CURRENCY

For new applications, administrators can optionally choose a simplified multicurrency option during application creation. Using simplified currency avoids the use of the Hsp_Rates dimension and adds a Currency dimension with exchange rates stored in the Account dimension.

The Currency dimension contains members for all your foreign currencies under Input Currencies and Reporting Currencies.

Dimensions						
Dimensions	Performance Settings	Evaluation Order				
Cube <all cul<="" td=""><td>oes> 💌 Dimension C</td><td>urrency 💌 🛖 🥖</td><td>Search Curr</td><td>ency Code 💌</td><td></td><td>#* *#</td></all>	oes> 💌 Dimension C	urrency 💌 🛖 🥖	Search Curr	ency Code 💌		#* *#
Actions 🔻 V	iew 🕶 📌 🎝 🖁	1 / % 🗸 🔻	A 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	🛃 Detach	夏雨的	
Name						
Currency						
> Input Cu	rrencies					
Reportin	g Currencies					
> No Curre	encv					

The Account dimension contains Exchange Rates that stores the ending and average rates used to convert foreign currencies into the base currency. These rates are in FX Rates-Average and FX Rates-Ending.

Dimensions				
Dimensions	Performance Settings	Evaluation Order		
Cube <all cut<="" td=""><td>bes> 💌 Dimension</td><td>Account 🔄 🛖 🥖</td><td>Sort Descendants 💽 🗿 惧 Search Name</td><td>- ***</td></all>	bes> 💌 Dimension	Account 🔄 🛖 🥖	Sort Descendants 💽 🗿 惧 Search Name	- ** *
Actions 🔻 V	liew 🕶 🎄 🖓	ñ 🥖 💥 🖂 🔻	🌡 📆 🕃 🚰 🖬 Detach 🛛 頁 菅 🏗	
Name				
Account				
A Exchang	je Rates			
> FX Ra	ates - Average			
FX Ra	ates - Ending			

Exchange rate data is entered to an exchange rate form called Exchange Rates to Default Currency. Users with view permissions can view the rates for the currencies on this form.

Name	Description
Torms	

See "About Simplified Multicurrency" in *Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud*.

SMART LIST DYNAMIC SYNC WITH DIMENSION HIERARCHIES

You can now create smart lists based on dimension hierarchies. This dynamically updates smart list values based on member updates. These smart lists are tied to member names using member alias representation by smart list ID. This can be stored in separate alias table name, for example, SLAliases. User security for the dimension is honored for the smart lists created from that dimension's hierarchy.

imart Lists Create Smar		
reate Same	A LIST.	
Properties	Entres Prever	
	* Smart List	
	* Label	
	Digitap Order (10 *	
#History (In	to Down Label	
#7810	ng Form Label Form Satting 🕈	
Automatical	Ny generate ID 🕕	
Croatel	from Nembers 🗭	
Figs	when Selections	14

SYNC SCENARIO TIME RANGE WITH FORM DISPLAY

Form grid display can be tied to the start and end period for the respective scenarios on display. When the new grid level form property is checked, the time periods outside of the scenario time period range are suppressed.

Grid Properties									
Rows									
Suppress missing blocks Suppress missing data - Rows	8	ACTING AN	Allas (Default)	Description	Security	FT TS TA	Start W.	End Period	Fot W.
Suppress involid data - Rows	ō.	Scenario	and the subset		and an interest of the	Jan	FILL	Dec	FY18
Default rev height	(Nedure *	5 Variance				Jan	F/11	Dec	FV19
Columes		Variance Comments No Scenaria			Vjew	Jan Jan	PITE FITE	Dec	PV18 PV18
Suppress missing data - Columns	8	Actual			Wiew	Jan	F(1)	Dec	FY1#
Suppress invelid data - Calumna Gefault column width	Site-ta-Fit *	 Plen Adi Plan 			Vjew	Jan	PY15 FI15	Dec	PY19 PY19
Other	SOUTH T	Revised Plan			View	Im	F/15	Dec	FY19
Suppress invalid Scenario/Time Periods	8	> Parecett > Act w Plan			Vjeni Vjeni	Jan Jan	PY15 F(11	Dec	PY18 FY18
Glabal Accomptions Form	63	Act vi Plan % Act vi Prescant			View	Jan Jan	P(11 P(11	Dec Dec	FV19 FV19
Enable Autoiave	8	Forecast vs Parecast			Vjew Vjew	Jan	PG1	Dec	FY18
Run Form Calc on Autosave	8	> Plan Adj %			Vjeni	Jen	F/15	Det	FY19

CLEAR CUBE

A new action menu in the Console allows customers to clear specific areas within both input and reporting cubes. For ASO reporting cubes, a partial clear allows the use of MDX expressions to identify areas of the cube to clear. Clear Cube jobs can be scheduled as jobs using the job scheduler.

 Clear Cube	Are all then Caroli
Name (Tauroneet In peter Inne (Vecco V) What would you like to clear U (Dear AL Restance) () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	How would you like to # Lipson © Physical

DATA MAPS FROM ANY DENSE DIMENSION

When defining data maps, the designer can pick any of the dense dimensions with Smart List associated to be mapped against a dimension in the target cube.

Data Map Options	OK Cancal
Select Items to Copy	Comments and Attachments Cotate Supporting Detail
Smart List Dimension	Account + Account Period

DRILL FROM SHARED MEMBERS ON A FORM

Users can now drill on shared members to navigate to the children of the base member. For example, if the member Gross Profit has children, and Gross Profit is also a shared member in another hierarchy, the user can drill into Gross Profit(shared) when used in a form to see children of Gross Profit.

A REAL PROPERTY AND A	the second se			
ADD1 001 ####D/#+* 5158	State A 11 K			
Thermon frames		And Description	and the second	-
a monta time			1000	
Product of the local data			100.04	
 I exercise at least 			Acres (in	
Contraction of the local division of the loc			Annual Line	
And and a state			(denim)	
· managements			- undurfu	
> month francest			and the second	
a feet (second)			Distance in the	
Tanner Dieses			CONTRACTOR	
A REPORT OF A R			Section 1	
C. Inter-Options Education			print UK.	
- International Acceleration			Acres 140	
- TerretParel			and .	
a fel income final			100000108	
- AND AND A CONTRACTOR				

LIMIT USER VARIABLES BY MEMBER FUNCTIONS

User Variables can now be bound to apply only for specific hierarchies within the dimension. The hierarchies can be selected using member selection in the user variable set up with Variables. Usage of user variables will then be restricted to be within the specified hierarchies. This is particularly useful when using dynamic user variables in data forms.

User Variable Definition	91.
	· .
	÷.
	41.
	·

SPECIFY RANGES WITHIN SUBSTITUTION VARIABLES

You can now specify range values when defining substitution variables, for example, FY16:FY18

HIDE SAVE CONFIRMATION MESSAGES ON FORM SAVE

Form designers can now prevent the form save confirmation message from being displayed to users by specifying an option in form design.

Display Properties	
Hate form med-only	12
They Parry	10
Diplay ensuing values as blank	м.
Allow multiple convenience per entity	-40
Enable Hass Altocate	- 12
Enable Grid Ignued	ю.
Evable coll-level dislament	.e
Hennage for forms with ea data	
rade Save Configuration Pleasage	8

DUPLICATE ALIASES

The usability and readability of forms and ad hoc grids is increased with support for duplicate aliases for members from different dimensions and for members within dimensions.

The guidelines are:

- Duplicate aliases are supported across dimensions and within dimensions.
- Aliases can have the same name as a member.
- When referencing an alias that resolves to multiple members in free-form mode, an error is
 returned noting that the alias cannot be resolved to a single member. You can do this either by
 using the Member Selector to select the correct alias name or by hand-typing the qualified
 name. Using the parent member name as a qualifier should be sufficient in most cases, given
 that only duplicate alias names are supported, not duplicate member names.

Note that member names are still required to be unique so that they can be used in rules and form designs to avoid name collisions.

INVALID INTERSECTIONS REPORTS

When using the valid intersections feature, users can input data only in specific areas of the application as defined in the valid intersections rules.

With Invalid Intersection Reports, administrators can review specific areas of the application where data exists that does not conform to the valid intersection rules and can be considered invalid. Data may reside in invalid intersections due to actions in business rules, data load, or data maps. Administrators can use this report to clear data from invalid intersections.

PLANNING STANDARD INTERFACE (WORKSPACE)

There are no new features being introduced specifically for the Standard (Workspace) Interface.

SMART VIEW FOR OFFICE

IMPORT METADATA FOR MICROSOFT WORD

In this release, Import Metadata functionality is extended to Microsoft Word.

The Import Metadata command gives you the ability to reuse Oracle Smart View for Office content in Word documents, content that has already been formatted and customized for Word. You can use the copy and paste commands in Word to retain the customized formatting of a Smart View object, such as a table or graph, and the use Import Metadata to bring the metadata into the copied object.

For example, suppose you have a Word document containing a highly-formatted table with Smart View data points, and you would like to reuse the table in a different Word document. Instead of recreating the table from scratch, you can reuse the work that is already available with the new Import Metadata command on the Smart View ribbon.

Using the Word copy and paste commands to copy the table from one Word document to another, only the data is copied; the metadata is not copied. After the copy and paste, use the Import Metadata command on the Smart View ribbon to import the metadata from the original document into the new document. You can copy and paste within the same Word document or to a different Word document.

See "Importing Metadata into Copied Word Documents" in the Oracle Smart View for Office User's Guide

INSERT ATTRIBUTES IN AD HOC GRIDS

You can now quickly add attribute dimensions to an ad hoc grid at any time during the ad hoc session.

To launch the Insert Attributes dialog box, where you can select the attribute members to add to the POV, click **Insert Attributes** on the Planning Ad Hoc ribbon.

When the attribute dimensions are in the POV, you can pivot or drag them to the grid as required. Once on the grid, you can use the Remove Only command to remove any unwanted attribute dimension or members. If the grid already contains some, but not all, attribute dimensions in the database, you can click Insert Attributes to select any of the remaining attributes to the POV.

Note that you can still use Member Selection to add specific attribute dimensions as required.

See "Inserting Attribute Dimensions on the Sheet" in the Oracle Smart View for Office User's Guide.

ATTRIBUTE AND TIME PERIOD DIMENSIONS IN PLANNING ADMIN EXTENSION

In the Planning Admin Extension, you can now work with attribute dimensions and the Time Period dimension. Just as with regular dimensions, you can use the Planning Admin Extension in the Smart View application to quickly import and edit attribute and time dimension application metadata.

See Administering Planning for Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud.

DATA MANAGEMENT

SERVICE INSTANCE INTEGRATIONS

Data Management can now be used as a primary gateway to move data from one service instance to another. A service instance is a self-contained unit often containing the web server and the database application (Oracle Planning and Budgeting Cloud application).

To use this feature, you open the parent service instance, and then use the target application option to register a child service instance. In this case, you use the "Cloud" option as the target application type. Once the child service instance is registered, it can be used as a source or target application.

NEW ALL DATA TYPES DATA LOAD METHOD

Data Management added a new All Data Types Data Load method which enables you to load numbers, text, Smartlists, and date.

See "All Data Types Data Loads" in the Administering Data Management for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud for detailed information.

CALCULATION MANAGER

REDESIGNED METADATA LOOP COMPONENT WITHIN A TEMPLATE

Metadata loop components enable you to assign a value to multiple members. Starting in this update, you can use either a function (Metadata) or a start and end value (Fixed). Previously, you could only use four functions in the metadata loop. In this release, you can use most member set functions.

To create a metadata loop component, drag its icon and drop it into the flow chart of a custom defined template.

See "Working With Metadata Loop Components" in *Designing with Calculation Manager for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.*

CREATE A TEMPLATE USING A SCRIPT

When you create a template using a script, you can:

- Deploy the script template to Planning.
- Launch the template in Planning, where the steps will display allowing you to enter data at runtime.
- Use run-time functions and design-time prompts.

See "Creating a Template Using a Script" in *Designing with Calculation Manager for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.*

NEW AND REVISED SYSTEM TEMPLATES

Revised System Templates include:

- Amount Unit Rates
- Allocations (This template replaces both Allocate Simple and Allocate Simple Exclude, and includes all of the functionality in both these templates.)
- Copy Data

System Templates are now displayed under New Objects:

lation Vev. 3 Dans P54 MH a	reals varial	Die biner tale: 1	and .			
ex Objects Pornale Sost Caditoo Verniee Stolu Verniee Stolu Verniee Stolu Stolutes Stolutes Stolutes Case Oats Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode Verniee Encode Stolutes Encode St	-	geben -	Ent Costen C E E	0100		
Allocate - Level to Level		Global Range	Watables Sirkt Unages Errort & Warrings		Properties	
Appropriate Contents Conversion		Tatalia Selecto		Herber Minter (4)	C	
			the Oylamcally	1.54	tiete	test
		Ownerstar	Velue		and a	
	Y	Account	1000		Description	
ning Objects	100	Period				
Calabi		HSP_//ww	- Q-		Germania	
System Templates		Test				
		Version			Location	
		tormy			Application	30207075
		Product	10		Plan Tupe	Vatan
					Options	10000
					Create data	ac mareture (1)
						nz martian [7]
		<			Enable	ikohhuntana []]

STEP VALIDATION ERRORS AND WARNINGS

You can now add a warning or an error to a step using validation conditions. Errors prevent the next step. Warnings allow the next step after you click OK on the warning message. You can use a design-time prompt or function on the validation condition. This allows you to use functions on design-time prompts without having to create non-promptable design-time prompts.

CREATE A NEW VARIABLE WHEREVER THE VARIABLE SELECTOR IS AVAILABLE

You can now create a variable anywhere that the Variable Selector is available. For example, if you are in a script rule, click the Variable icon, and then click **Create**.

Versalite Description Group DavdSeparationert Sand_Connergy surversy meedine rigs are surversy meetine ring are surversy meetine rigs are surversy meetine rigs are surv	Type Provider Resolution Distingen Distingen Resolution Processi Resolution Resolution Resolution
Taudi Consençi curvero texeler de un BIT ATPO BIT ATPO BIT ATPO DI Streads CCT_RET IN Fronting Period text period text period Reporting Cartero, mentior de unable	Manufase Manufase Datagen Datagen Manufase Manufase Manufase Manufase Manufase
HILAPP HI	Dilliger Diliger Mantan Mantan Macani Macani
NTCATPUN Inclusion A pLosmake PCL_REP PCL_REP Not New New New New New New New New	Pleasant Peacent Peacent
PLoting A pLStreads CC_UTP CC_UTP CC_UTP CC_UTP CC_UTP CC_UTP Patta Patt	Pleasant Peacent Peacent
PL_Interaction PL_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE	Pleasant Peacent Peacent
PL_Interaction PL_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE_INTE	Pleasant Peacent Peacent
HCT_ETF2_HIL Period test period? test period? Reporting Carterio, member for winible	Percent
HCT_ETF2_HIL Period test period? test period? Reporting Carterio, member for winible	
The Theodorem Text Text Text Text Text Text Text Text	and the second se
periodi Reporting Carrence member representative	1180100010
periodi Reporting Carrence member representative	Hambert
Reporting Carrience Reporting Carrience member its variable	Physics
	member
50111	members
18 agt	teng
tou)	WEG .
leviter	Famber
(J),164	Members
(h), ee	Phenobera

After you click **Create**, the **Create Variable** dialog box is displayed in the rule, and you can create the variable without having to leave the rule.

Create Variable Scope Vision.Plan1		Gencraption	×
Name		Lestration	
Group			
Type String	V		
Use Last Entered Value			
Default Value	RIP RIP Text		
Reb			QK Cancel

See "Working with Variables" in Designing with Calculation Manager for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.

MEMBER TYPE VARIABLE INCLUDES ATTRIBUTE DIMENSION NAMES(S)

In the Variable Designer, for member type variables using "dimension name," the list of dimensions now contains Attribute dimension names.

In the following example, "PROD_Colors" and "Size" are Attribute dimension names:

Properties					
Scope Vision			Description		
Name					
Group					
Type Member		V			
🗌 Use Last Entere	d Value 🔿 Dimension Type 🖲 Dimensio	n Name			
Dimension	Limits	Default Value		RTP	RTP Text
Period Version Product Account Entity Year HSP_View Channel AltYear Scenario PRIOD_Colors Size					

See "Working with Variables" in *Designing with Calculation Manager for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.*

CONDITION BUILDER FOR DEBUGGING

When you are debugging business rules, a Condition Builder is now available to help you build conditions.

To access the Condition Builder:

- 1. Add a breakpoint to a line, then right-click, and then select Add Condition.
- 2. In the Add Condition dialog box, click the Condition icon.

1 FD ("Newlow") 10 FD ("Newlow") 11 FD ("Newlow") 12 "Newlow" 13 FD ("Newlow") 14 GE ("Newlow") 14 GE ("Newlow")	
unders front posts	Add Condition
Residen chaft	Condition
ned 2 Jane 19 Ang to Ang to Ang Ang Ang Ang	Example: @uCarrHitr(nembertane), @ufter(nembertane)) == 18 er @before (mentertanes) < 10 er (otgetradiske (= 100
	gir. Canad

Condition Builder					
Condition					
- 目目 -					
If 💌					
IF LOO					
• @					
Formula	B Pugction Operator ==	200		-	
Formula	Cperator ==	• Vi	alae *	燕	
Help					QK Cancel

See "Analyzing and Debugging Business Rules" in *Designing with Calculation Manager for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.*

LOG MESSAGES AVAILABLE AFTER LOG OFF

You can now see the Log Message tab even if you are logged off of Calculation Manager. For example, assume that you launch a rule in Calculation Manager, the rules takes a long time to run, and Calculation Manager times out and closes. When you open the rule again, the Log Message tab will still be displayed until you close the rule.

You can use the Member Selector dialog box to create MDX syntax and validation before running a partial clear.

To clear partial data using an MDX expression:

- 1. In Database Properties, expand an ASO application.
- 2. Right-click an ASO cube, then select Clear, and then Partial Data.
- 3. In the Clear Partial Data dialog box, click the Member Selector icon.
- 4. In the **Member Selector** dialog box, select a member or members , or use a function from each dimension, and then click **OK**.

Hember Selector						
mensions AltYear	~					
Members Search				Selections		
Name	Uar .	Count 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ा। २ ११	Name Account @Relative('Nt', 0) Portod @Descandards('QL') Year PY12 PY13 PY13 PY14 Scenario Pan Version Working Entity @Relative('100', 0) Product @Relative('P_TP', 0) AltYear PY06	Type Dimension Variable Dimension Variable Variable Variable Dimension Variable Dimension Variable Dimension Variable Dimension Variable Dimension Variable Dimension Variable	Alias 0000: Net Income Resources Total Product
lection : FY0E						
(elp)						QK Can

The MDX expression is created. For example:

```
Crossjoin(Crossjoin(Crossjoin(Crossjoin(Crossjoin(Crossjoin({[NI
].Levels(0).Members}, {except(DESCENDANTS([Q1]), {[Q1]})}, {[FY12], [FY13], [F
Y14]}), {[Plan]}), {[Working]}), {[100].Levels(0).Members}), {[P_TP].Levels(0)
.Members}), {[FY06]}
```

Note: The MDX expression is validated when you click **OK** to clear data. If you modify the MDX expression directly, it will validate before running.

NEW DESIGN-TIME PROMPT FUNCTIONS

The following new design-time prompt functions are available:

@AVAILDIMCOUNT - Returns the number of available dimensions.

@DEPENDENCY - "Inclusive" returns member(s) from Input 1 for which Input 2 has member(s) specified from the same dimensions. "Exclusive" returns members from Input 1 for which Input 2 has no specified members in the same dimensions.

@DIMATTRIBUTE - Returns the attribute name if the specified attribute is associated with a dimension.

@DIMNAME - Returns the name of a dimension if it is valid for the database.

@DIMUDA - Returns the UDA name if the specified UDA is valid for the dimension.

@EVALUATE - Returns the result of an expression.

@FINDFIRST - Finds the first substring of a string that matches the given regular expression.

@FINDLAST - Finds the last substring of a string that matches the given regular expression.

@GETDATA - Returns the value of the slice.

@INTEGER - Returns an integer.

@ISDATAMISSING - Returns true if the value of the slice is missing.

@ISANDBOXED - Determines if the current application is sandboxed.

@ISVARIABLE - Determines if the argument is a variable.

@MATCHES - Returns "true" if the first substring of a string matches the given regular expression.

@MEMBERGENERATION - Returns the generation number of a member.

@MEMBERLEVEL - Returns the level number of a member.

@MSGFORMAT - Takes a set of objects, formats them, and then inserts the formatted strings into the pattern at the appropriate places.

@OPENDIMCOUNT - Returns the number of dimensions for which a member was not specified.

@VALUEDIMCOUNT - Returns the number of dimensions for which a member was specified.

@TOMDX - Returns an MDX expression.

NEW DESIGN-TIME PROMPT TYPES

The following new design-time prompt types are available:

- Percent
- Integer

- StringAsNumber
- DateAsNumber
- Smart List
- UDA

NEW DESIGN-TIME PROMPT GRID

A new grid is available when creating design-time prompts for custom-defined templates.

To create a design-time prompt:

- 1. Open an existing template or create a new template in the **Template Designer**.
- 2. In the **Design Time Prompt** tab, click
- 3. If you already have design-time prompts defined for the template, select where to insert the new design-time prompt.
- 4. In the **Create Prompt** dialog box, in the **Properties** tab, enter the information about the design-time prompt.

Note: The tabs that display in the **Create Prompt** dialog box are based on the type of design-time prompt, and the rows that are displayed are based on what is input.

reale Prom				
Properties	Dependencies	Define Limits		
	Nate			
	Type He	nher	¥	
	Prompt it?			
	Handatory? 🔛			
	Read Only 🔠			
	Is Hidden			
	UTP Text.			
	Comments			
	Dimension		v	
D	efault Value *		12	
Help				QK Cancel

NEW CUSTOM DEFINED FUNCTIONS

The following new custom defined functions are available:

New Bitwise Functions

@CalcMgrBitAnd - Performs a bitwise AND operation, which compares each bit of the first operand to the corresponding bit of the second operand. If both bits are 1, the corresponding result bit is set to 1; otherwise, the corresponding result bit is set to 0.

@CalcMgrBitOR - Performs a bitwise OR operation, which compares each bit of the first operand to the corresponding bit of the second operand. If either bit is 1, the corresponding result bit is set to 1; otherwise, the corresponding result bit is set to 0.

@CalcMgrBitExOR - Performs an exclusive bitwise OR operation, which compares each bit of the first operand to the corresponding bit of the second operand. If either bit is 1, the corresponding result bit is set to 1; otherwise, the corresponding result bit is set to 0.

@CalcMgrBitExBoolOR - Performs an exclusive boolean bitwise OR operation.

@CalcMgrBitCompliment - Performs a unary bitwise complement, which reverses each bit.

@CalcMgrBitShiftLeft - Performs a signed left shift.

@CalcMgrBitShiftRight - Performs a signed right shift.

@CalcMgrBitUnsignedShiftRight - Performs an unsigned right shift.

New Counter Functions

@CalcMgrCounterClearAll - Removes all keys and values from the counter

@CalcMgrCounterClearKey - Removes the value from the counter associated with the key

@CalcMgrCounterDecrement - Decrements the value in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, a value of zero is set for the key

@CalcMgrCounterDecrementKey - Decrements the value in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, a value of zero is set for the key

@CalcMgrCounterGetKeyNumber - Returns the text found in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, missing value is returned.

@CalcMgrCounterGetKeyText - Returns the text found in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, missing value is returned.

@CalcMgrCounterGetNumber - Returns the number from the counter specified by the key. If the key is not found or the value is not a number, missing value is returned.

@CalcMgrCounterGetText - Returns the text found in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, missing value is returned.

@CalcMgrCounterIncrement - Increment the value in the counter specified by the key

@CalcMgrCounterIncrementKey - Increments the value in the counter based on the key. If the key is not found, a value of zero is set for the key.

New Date/Time Functions

@CalcMgrExcelToDate - Converts an Excel date to YYYYMMDD format.

@CalcMgrExcelToDateTime - Converts an Excel date to YYYYMMDDHHMMSS format.

@CalcMgrGetStringFormattedDateTime - Converts the date defined by format to date in the YYYYMMddHHmmss format. For example: @CalcMgrGetFormattedDate(12302014, MMddyyyyHHmm) returns 201412301430.

@CalcMgrDateToExcel - Converts a date in YYYYMMDD format to an Excel date

@CalcMgrDateTimeToExcel - Converts a date in YYYYMMDDHHMMSS format to an Excel date
 @CalcMgrRollDay - Roll the day up or down to the date which is in the YYYYMMDD format
 @CalcMgrRollDate - Adds or subtracts (up or down) a single unit of time on the given date field without changing larger fields.For example,

@CalcMgrRollDate(19960131,"month",@_true) results in the date of 19960229, and @CalcMgrRollDate(19960131, "day";,@_true) results in the date of 19960101. Possible values of date_part are: day, month, week and year.

@CalcMgrRollMonth - Roll the month up or down to the date which is in the YYYYMMDD format.

@CalcMgrRollYear - Roll the year up or down to the date which is in the YYYYMMDD format.

New Financial Functions

@CalcMgrExcelACCRINT - Returns the accrued interest for a security that pays periodic interest @CalcMgrExcelACCRINTM - Returns the accrued interest for a security that pays interest at maturity @CalcMgrExcelAMORDEGRC - Returns the depreciation for each accounting period by using a depreciation coefficient

@CalcMgrExcelAMORLINC - Returns the depreciation for each accounting period

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPDAYBS - Returns the number of days from the beginning of the coupon period to the settlement date

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPDAYS - Returns the number of days in the coupon period that contains the settlement date

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPDAYSNC - Returns the number of days from the settlement date to the next coupon date

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPNCD - Returns a number that represents the next coupon date after the settlement date

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPNUM - Returns the number of coupons payable between the settlement date and maturity date, rounded up to the nearest whole coupon

@CalcMgrExcelCOUPPCD - Returns a number that represents the previous coupon date before the settlement date

@CalcMgrExcelCUMIPMT - Returns the cumulative interest paid on a loan between start_period and end_period

@CalcMgrExcelCUMPRINC - Returns the cumulative principal paid on a loan between the start period and the end period

@CalcMgrExcelDB - Returns the depreciation of an asset for a specified period using the fixed-declining balance method

@CalcMgrExcelDDB - Returns the depreciation of an asset for a specified period using the doubledeclining balance method or some other method you specify

@CalcMgrExcelDISC - Returns the discount rate for a security

@CalcMgrExcelDOLLARDE - Converts a dollar price expressed as an integer part and a fraction part, such as 1.02, into a dollar price expressed as a decimal number. Fractional dollar numbers are sometimes used for security prices.

@CalcMgrExcelDOLLARFR - Converts a dollar price, expressed as a decimal number, into a dollar price, expressed as a fraction

@CalcMgrExcelDURATION - Returns the annual duration of a security with periodic interest payments @CalcMgrExcelEFFECT - Returns the effective annual interest rate

@CalcMgrExcelFV - Returns the future value of an investment

@CalcMgrExcelFVSCHEDULE - Returns the future value of an initial principal after applying a series of compound interest rates

@CalcMgrExcelINTRATE - Returns the interest rate for a fully invested security

@CalcMgrExcelIPMT - Returns the interest payment for a given period for an investment based on periodic, constant payments and a constant interest rate

@CalcMgrExcelIRR - Returns the internal rate of return for a series of cash flows

@CalcMgrExcellSPMT - Calculates the interest paid during a specific period of an investment

@CalcMgrExcelMDURATION - Returns the Macauley modified duration for a security with an assumed par value of \$100

@CalcMgrExcelMIRR - Returns the internal rate of return where positive and negative cash flows are financed at different rates

@CalcMgrExcelNOMINAL - Returns the annual nominal interest rate

@CalcMgrExcelNPER - Returns the number of periods for an investment

@CalcMgrExcelNPV - Returns the net present value of an investment based on a series of periodic cash flows and a discount rate

@CalcMgrExcelPMT - Returns the periodic payment for an annuity

@CalcMgrExcelPPMT - Returns the payment on the principal for a given period for an investment based on periodic, constant payments and a constant interest rate

@CalcMgrExcelPRICE - Returns the price per \$100 face value of a security that pays periodic interest @CalcMgrExcelPRICEDISC - Returns the price per \$100 face value of a discounted security

@CalcMgrExcelPRICEMAT - Returns the price per \$100 face value of a security that pays interest at maturity

@CalcMgrExcelPV - Returns the present value of an investment

@CalcMgrExcelRATE - Returns the interest rate per period of an annuity

@CalcMgrExcelRECEIVED - Returns the amount received at maturity for a fully invested security @CalcMgrExcelSLN - Returns the straight-line depreciation of an asset for one period

@CalcMgrExcelSYD - Returns the sum-of-years' digits depreciation of an asset for a specified period @CalcMgrExcelTBILLEQ - Returns the bond-equivalent yield for a Treasury bill

@CalcMgrExcelTBILLPRICE - Returns the price per \$100 face value for a Treasury bill

@CalcMgrExcelTBILLYIELD - Returns the yield for a Treasury bill

@CalcMgrExcelXIRR - Returns the internal rate of return for a schedule of cash flows that is not necessarily periodic

@CalcMgrExcelXNPV - Returns the net present value for a schedule of cash flows that is not necessarily periodic

@CalcMgrExcelYIELD - Returns the yield on a security that pays periodic interest

@CalcMgrExcelYIELDDISC - Returns the annual yield for a discounted security; for example, a Treasury bill

@CalcMgrExcelYIELDMAT - Returns the annual yield of a security that pays interest at maturity

New Math Functions

@CalcMgrExcelCEILING - Rounds a number up (away from zero) to the nearest integer or to the nearest multiple of significance

@CalcMgrExcelCOMBIN - Returns the number of combinations for a given number of objects

@CalcMgrExcelEVEN - Rounds a number up to the nearest even integer

@CalcMgrExcelFACT - Returns the factorial of a number

@CalcMgrExcelFACTDOUBLE - Returns the double factorial of a number

@CalcMgrExcelFLOOR - Rounds a number down, toward zero

@CalcMgrExcelGCD - Returns the greatest common divisor

@CalcMgrExcelLCM - Returns the least common multiple

@CalcMgrExcelMROUND - Rounds a number to a specified number of digits

@CalcMgrExcelMULTINOMIAL - Returns the multi-nominal of a set of numbers

@CalcMgrExcelODD - Rounds a number up to the nearest odd integer

@CalcMgrExcelPOWER - Returns the result of a number raised to a power

@CalcMgrExcelPRODUCT - Multiplies its arguments

@CalcMgrExcelROUNDDOWN - Rounds a number down, towards zero

@CalcMgrExcelROUNDUP - Rounds a number up, away from zero

@CalcMgrExcelSQRT - Returns a positive square root
@CalcMgrExcelSQRTPI - Returns the square root of (number * pi)
@CalcMgrExcelSUMSQ - Returns the sum of the squares of the arguments
@CalcMgrExcelSUMPRODUCT - Returns the sum of the products of corresponding array components

New Statistical Functions

@CalcMgrExcelAVEDEV - Returns the average of the absolute deviations of data points from their mean
@CalcMgrExcelDEVSQ - Returns the sum of squares of deviations
@CalcMgrExcelLARGE - Returns the nth highest number
@CalcMgrExcelMEDIAN - Returns the median of the given numbers
@CalcMgrExcelSMALL - Returns the nth smallest number
@CalcMgrExcelSTDEV- Estimates standard deviation based on a sample
@CalcMgrExcelVAR - Estimates variance based on the entire population

New String Functions

@CalcMgrFindFirst - Find the first substring of this string that matches the given regular expression.
@CalcMgrFindLast - Find the last substring of this string that matches the given regular expression.
@CalcMgrMatches - Returns true, if the first substring of this string that matches the given regular expression. For regular expression, see "java.util.regex.Pattern" in the Java docs.
@CalcMgrMessageFormat - Creates a string with the given pattern and uses it to format the given arguments.

@CalcMgrStartsWith - Tests if this string starts with the specified prefix.

APPLICATION MANAGEMENT

APPLICATION ACCESS CONTROL

While the overall access rights granted to a user are controlled by the assigned identity domain role, Service Administrators can use the Access Control feature from the Console to assign additional application-level access by provisioning users and Native Directory groups with application-specific roles. For instance, a Planner in the service can now be assigned the Approvals Administrator role to enable the user to perform approvals-related activities.

To assign application access control, in Console, click or tap



	RACLE	Vi	sion				😧 Administrator 🕶
	Dashboards		provals. Repor	ta Console		adomy Navigator	
슏	Group Management Provisio	Provision Group: Vision	n Planner		OK Cance		
	Groups 💌 Search	Available Roles		Assigned	Roles	Action	
	Enance Management	C Ad Hoc Grid Creator		C Approvals Adminis	trafor	0	
	41 Vision Planner	C Ad Hoc User	> Move			0	
		Approvals Process Designer	Move All				
×		Calculation Manager Administrator	Remove				
お ス 留		III Planning Calculation Manager Administrator	Remove All				
Ø		Task List Access Manager					

See "Managing Application-Level Provisioning" in Administering Access Control for Oracle Enterprise Performance Management Cloud.

MIGRATION FUNCTIONALITY MOVED TO CONSOLE CARD

All migration functionality has been moved to the Console card, accessed from the Home page.

10	RACLE					Vision						🙆 Administrator 🔻
											2	
		Denhissanin	Tasks	Plane	Haden	Approvale	Reports	Comole	Settings	Academy	Berigeter	
4.4	Categories B	napshots Report	a.									
숺											SnectWi	Export
613											and a second second	- 10 m
-	Name											
矖	🗆 Data Ma	nagement										
×	m Calculat	ion Manager										
* *	Croups	and Membersh	ip									
H (0)	E Planning	1										
Q	Reportin	g										
	-											

To perform lifecycle management activities, from the Console, click or tap

NEW ORACLE CLOUD REST APIS FOR ORACLE PLANNING AND BUDGETING CLOUD

You can now use Planning REST APIs to import a data slice, export a data slice, and clear a data slice.

METADATA UPDATE AND CUBE REFRESH CONSIDERATIONS

After modifying application metadata, you must complete a cube refresh before:

- importing artifacts from snapshots
- the next scheduled maintenance window starts

The time required to complete a cube refresh operation depends on the metadata that was changed and the impact it has on the cube. For example, a refresh after updating a sparse block storage cube member may not take much time while a cube refresh after updating a dense block storage cube member or an aggregate storage cube member could take a long time. The quantity of Essbase data also impacts the cube refresh time. Oracle recommends that you evaluate these factors and schedule cube refresh to ensure that it completes before the application is backed up during the next maintenance window.

DISCLAIMER

The preceding is intended to outline our general product direction. It is intended for information purposes only, and may not be incorporated into any contract. It is not a commitment to deliver any material, code, or functionality, and should not be relied upon in making purchasing decisions. The development, release, and timing of any features or functionality described for Oracle's products remains at the sole discretion of Oracle Corporation.

Copyright © 2016, Oracle and / or its affiliates. All rights reserved. http://www.oracle.com